
Parkside  Station Approach  Burton Street  Melton Mowbray  Leicestershire  LE13 1GH 

01664 502502 * contactus@melton.gov.uk * www.melton.gov.uk * @MeltonBC 

 

 
 

Agenda 

 
 

 

 

Meeting name Planning Committee 

Date Thursday, 30 March 2023 

Start time 6.00 pm 

Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 
Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire, LE13 1GH 

Other information This meeting is open to the public 
 

Members of the Planning Committee are invited to attend the above meeting 
to consider the following items of business. 
 
Edd de Coverly 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership 
 
Councillors P. Posnett MBE (Chair) T. Webster (Vice-Chair) 
 R. Browne P. Chandler 
 C. Evans E. Holmes 
 J. Illingworth S. Lumley 
 D. Pritchett R. Smith 
 P. Wood  
 
 
 
 
Quorum: 6 Councillors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting enquiries Democratic Services 

Email democracy@melton.gov.uk 

Agenda despatched Wednesday, 22 March 2023 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

No. Item 
 

Page No. 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   MINUTES 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2023 
 

1 - 4 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Members to declare any interest as appropriate in respect of items to 
be considered at this meeting. 
 

5 - 6 

4.   SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS 
 

 

4.1   APPLICATION 21/01223/FUL 
Saltby Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 
 

7 - 32 

4.2   APPLICATION 21/00344/OUT 
Land at Main Street, Wymondham 
 

33 - 56 

5.   URGENT BUSINESS 
To consider any other business that the Chair considers urgent 
 

 

  



1 Planning Committee : 020223 

 

 

 

 

Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

Present: 

 

Chair Councillor P. Posnett MBE (Chair)  

 

Councillors T. Webster (Vice-Chair) R. Browne 

 P. Chandler C. Evans 

 C. Fisher E. Holmes 

 J. Illingworth D. Pritchett 

 R. Smith P. Wood 

 

Officers Interim Assistant Director for Planning 

Planning Development Manager 

 Solicitor (TP) 

 Senior Planning Officer (AC) 

 Planning Officer (HW) 

 Democratic Services Officer (HA) 

 Democratic Services Officer (SE) 

 

  

 

Meeting name Planning Committee 

Date Thursday, 2 February 2023 

Start time 6.00 pm 

Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire, LE13 1GH 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2 Planning Committee : 020223 

 

 

Minute 

No. 

 

Minute 

PL71 Apologies for Absence 

An apology for late attendance was received from Councillor Webster. 

 

PL72 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2023 were confirmed as a true 

record. 

 

PL73 Declarations of Interest 

Councillor Posnett held a standing personal interest in any matters relating to the 

Leicestershire County Council due to her role as a County Councillor. 

 

PL74 Schedule of Applications 

 

PL75 Application 22/00553/FUL 

 

The Planning Policy Officer (HW) addressed the Committee and provided a 

summary of the application and advised the application was recommended for 

approval subject to conditions set out in Appendix C. The Planning Officer advised 

that the development would comply with DEFRA standards for animal welfare and 

there were conditions to secure lighting arrangements, ecology and protection of 

wildlife and to ensure the site was for the private use of the landowner only. 

 

Members raised concerns and the Planning Officer responded as follows:  

 

• The reference to ‘urban character assessment’ on page 11, paragraph 4.3.2 of 

the report was correct 

• There was a landscaping condition which included type and location of hedges 

and trees and these would be species that were appropriate for an equine 

setting 

 

Pursuant to Chapter 2, Part 9, Paragraphs 2.8-2.28 of the Council’s Constitution in 

relation to public speaking at Planning Committee, the Chair allowed the following 

to give a 3 minute presentation: 

 

Simon Tong, Objector 

 

Following the speaker’s presentation, the following points were noted: 

 

Application:  22/00553/FUL 

Location: Land OS 480625 329088 Branston Road Eaton 

Proposal: Change of use of land from agricultural arable to equine; 

erection of stables with hay and tack room; and new field 

access  

Page 2



3 Planning Committee : 020223 

 

• A footpath diversion request had been submitted to the Leicestershire County 

Council for a neighbouring piece of land however this was outside of the 

application site and was therefore not a consideration for this application 

• It was noted that people previously walked across the site in question rather 

than use the longer route of the public footpath hence the application for a 

footpath diversion to follow a more direct pathway 

 

Anthony Haslam, on behalf of the applicant 

 

Following the speaker’s presentation, the following points were noted: 

 

• The proposal was for the private use of the applicant and was not intended to 

be operated as a business  

• The Solicitor explained that there was a formal process for a footpath diversion 

but as far as the Council was aware there was no application for a diversion on 

the site 

• The Planning Development Manager confirmed that there was no footpath 

across the application site therefore this matter was not relevant to this 

application   

• The applicant was aware of the safety and security risks involved in such a 

development that was located in the open countryside 

 

During debate the following points were noted: 

 

• There was concern for security of such a development in the open countryside 

and the Solicitor advised that this was not a planning consideration 

• There was concern as to lighting the site in the open countryside to the  

detriment of the well-being of wildlife and light pollution 

• It was noted that there was a specific condition relating to lighting 

• It was reiterated that the development was for the personal use of the applicant 

and a further application would be required should the applicant wish to run the 

site for a commercial purpose  

 

Councillor Evans proposed that the application be approved. Councillor Smith 

seconded the motion.  

 

RESOLVED  

 

That the application be APPROVED subject to the conditions set out in 

Appendix C. 

 

(8 in favour, 1 abstention) 

(Councillor Webster did not vote on this application due to his late arrival at 6.17 

pm.) 

 

REASONS  

 

The application seeks full planning permission for the change of use of land from 

Page 3



4 Planning Committee : 020223 

 

agriculture to an equestrian use including the erection of a stable block. Local Plan 

Policy SS2 sets out the development strategy for the Borough, outside the 

settlements it restricts development to that which is necessary and appropriate in 

the open countryside. An equestrian paddock and associated stables are 

considered to be an appropriate form of development within the open countryside.  

 

Local Plan Policy D2 supports new equestrian development in open countryside 

locations subject to certain criteria which it is considered the proposal meets 

including that it would not have an adverse impact upon the landscape or character 

of the area; the development will not have an unacceptable impact upon residential 

development; the development would not result in the loss of best and most 

versatile agricultural land; its size, scale, design and construction materials are 

appropriate to its setting and function; it would be closely related to the existing 

bridleway network; and would not have an overly adverse impact on the highway 

network.  

 

The site would not be used on a commercial basis, and in the interests of amenity 

and highway safety it is recommended that this is secured by a planning condition. 

The submitted ecology survey demonstrates that the proposal would protect and 

enhance biodiversity, and the substantial tree and hedgerow planting proposed 

which would result in habitat creation and biodiversity net gain. Biodiversity would 

be further protected by the impacts of the proposed development through the 

proposed mitigation measures which would be secured by condition. The design 

includes sustainability credentials including green energy generation technologies.  

 

The proposed development would therefore accord to Policies SS1, SS2, IN2, D1, 

D2, EN1, EN2, EN6 and EN8 of the Melton Local Plan, and the overall aims of the 

National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

 

PL76 Urgent Business 

There was no urgent business. 

 

 

The meeting closed at: 6.41 pm 

 

 

 

 

Page 4



In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or 
as soon as you become aware.  In any other circumstances, where Members require further 
advice they should contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer in advance 
of the meeting. 

 

MEMBER INTERESTS 
 

Do I have an interest? 

 
1 DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 

A “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” is any interest described as such in 

the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 

2012 and includes an interest of yourself, or of your Spouse/Partner (if 

you are aware of your Partner's interest) that falls within the following 

categories: Employment, Trade, Profession, Sponsorship, Contracts, 

Land/Property, Licences, Tenancies and Securities. 

 

A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest is a Registerable Interest.  Failure to 

register a DPI is a criminal offence so register entries should be kept up-

to-date. 

 
2 OTHER REGISTERABLE INTERESTS (ORIs) 
  

An “Other Registerable Interest” is a personal interest in any business of your 

authority which relates to or is likely to affect:  

a)  any body of which you are in general control or management and to 

which you are nominated or appointed by your authority; or  

b)  any body  

(i)  exercising functions of a public nature  

(ii)  any body directed to charitable purposes or  

(iii)  one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) 

 

3 NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS (NRIs) 
 

“Non-Registrable Interests” are those that you are not required to register but 
need to be disclosed when a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates 
to your financial interest or wellbeing or a financial interest or wellbeing of a 
relative or close associate that is not a DPI. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or 
as soon as you become aware.  In any other circumstances, where Members require further 
advice they should contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer in advance 
of the meeting. 

Declarations and Participation in Meetings 

 
1 DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 

1.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interests which include both the interests of yourself and your partner then: 

 

a) you must disclose the interest;  

b) not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter; and  

c) must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a 

 Dispensation. 

 
2 OTHER REGISTERABLE INTERESTS (ORIs) 
 

2.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your Other Registerable Interests i.e. relating to a body you may be 

involved in: 

 

a) you must disclose the interest 

b) may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 

at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the 

matter; and  

c) must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a Dispensation.  

 
3 NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS (NRIs) 
 
3.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting, which is not registrable but may become relevant 

when a particular item arises i.e. interests which relate to you and /or other people you are 
connected with (e.g. friends, relative or close associates) then: 

 
a) you must disclose the interest; 

b) may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 

at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the 

matter; and  

c) must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a Dispensation.  

    
4 BIAS  
 
4.1 Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using 

the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.  If you have been involved in an issue 
in such a manner or to such an extent that the public are likely to perceive you to be biased 
in your judgement of the public interest (bias): 

 
a) you should not take part in the decision-making process 
b) you should state that your position in this matter prohibits you from taking part 
c) you should leave the room.  

Page 6



 

 

Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

1 

 

 

Planning Committee 
30 March 2023 

Report of: Interim Assistant Director for 
Planning  

       

  
  

 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to 
use for the import, storage and export (B8 use) of 
straw for commercial purposes; construction of 
weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) 
Saltby Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

Corporate Priority: Delivering sustainable and inclusive growth in 
Melton 

Relevant Ward Member(s): Councillor Alan Hewson (Croxton Kerrial) 

Date of consultation with Ward 
Member(s): 

15 November 2021 

Exempt Information: No 

1 Summary 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.1

http://www.melton.gov.uk/
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

2 

 

1.1 This application was reported to planning committee on the 13th October 2022 where the 

decision was deferred to facilitate further discussion between the applicant and the 

community with regard to the routing of the HGVs to and from the site as requested by 

Members.  

1.2 A meeting took place on the 14th November 2022 with representatives of Sproxton, 

Croxton Kerrial, Hungerton and Wyville, and Denton Parish Council’s and the Ward 

Member Cllr. Hewson.  No representatives from Harlaxton Parish Council were available 

to attend.   

1.3 A consensus was reached that in-bound route for HGV’s visiting the site via the Croxton 

Kerrial junction was acceptable.  The outstanding concern related to the out-bound route 

of vehicles travelling away from the site.  It should be noted that irrespective of these 

matters relating to the routing being agreed outside of the planning process, they cannot 

be conditioned. Only conditions relating to access and egress via the entrance and exit to 

the site meet the tests for the use of conditions. 

1.4 As a result of the meeting an amended vehicle route away from the site has been 

proposed.  The route would exit onto Wyville Road with a right turn out of the site down to 

Hungerton. However, rather than turning left out of Ten Acre Lane then right down to 

Denton, the vehicles would turn right and head east towards Grantham and the B1174 

then onto the A52.  It is acknowledged that this route, like all other ‘exit’ options, will still 

pass ‘The Hollow’ at Hungerton but it does avoid the Denton Hill and crossroads that were 

deemed of primary concern at the meeting. 

1.5 The following clarification was also provided to the questions raised by the Parish 

Councils:  

a. As stated at the committee meeting and in the original committee report there would 

be a maximum of 20 heavy goods vehicles, associated with the straw storage, coming 

to and leaving the site in any one day.   

b. An emergency store means the site is seen as a ‘reserve’ to cater for two main 

eventualities.  Firstly to plug a gap in the regular supply which the operator will be able 

to plan for about a week in advance.  Secondly, very occasionally, there could be an 

unforeseen circumstance with a supplier where it could generate a desire to take 

some straw from Saltby at shorter notice but not less than 24 hours.  The timeframes 

provided were not available at the time of the committee meeting but as previously 

confirmed the site would not operate outside of the proposed hours of 7.00am to 

7.00pm Monday to Friday, which would be secured via planning condition.   

c. Straw for the power station is purchased from farm enterprises in many different 

locations but mainly around Lincolnshire and Leicestershire. In the main this travels 

direct to the power station without coming through Saltby.  To minimise costs and 

mileage, the straw stored at Saltby is straw that would otherwise be passing by the 

site as it’s transported to the power station.  This information was provided in the 

context of carbon emissions generated by the proposed use.  

1.6 Prior to the meeting with Parish Councils held at the Council Offices the Applicant and 

their Agent attended a meeting with local residents at Saltby Church on Friday 4th 

November 2022.  As with the meeting held at the Council Offices, further clarification was 

provided on the operations involved in the proposed straw storage use.  Notes taken at 

Page 8



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

3 

 

this meeting have been submitted and made available online. 

https://pa.melton.gov.uk/online-

applications/files/0578A412FAD356744F7806B37CAD8CB7/pdf/21_01223_FUL-

A_Page_-_Saltby_Village_Community_Engagement_Event_Notes_06.02.23-1151954.pdf 

 

1.7 The original Committee report for 13th October Planning Committee is provided at 

Appendix B for information and contains the full assessment of all material planning 

considerations. Only the factors specific to the reasons for Committee’s deferral of the 

application are considered in this further report. 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

1. It is recommended the application is approved, subject to: 

(i)  Conditions as set out in Appendix A 

2 Reason for Recommendations 

2.1 Appendix B contains the Committee report considered at the 13th October 2022 meeting of 

the Planning Committee and is included to provide information on the other material 

planning considerations, issues and representations raised in respect of this application 

separate from the clarification provided to address the Parish Council’s concerns and 

concerns of the neighbouring residents; and the proposed re-routing for vehicles exiting 

the site. 

2.2 The reasons behind Committee’s resolution to defer the application on 13th October are 

considered to have been addressed.  It is emphasised that no concerns relating to 

highways safety have been raised by either Leicestershire or Lincolnshire County Councils 

as the relevant Local Highways Authorities (LHA) to any of the potential vehicle routes 

proposed, and it is not considered reasonable, necessary or enforceable to include a 

condition to limit the vehicle routing outside of the site.  The officer’s recommendation 

remains approval subject to conditions. 

3 Key Factors 

3.1 Reason for Committee Determination 

3.1.1 This application was first presented to the Committee in October 2022 due to the number 

of objections received from more than 10 households, contrary to the recommendation in 

line with the constitution. It returns to Committee as a result of the deferral at the October 

meeting, the issues raised having been considered in further detail. 

4 Report Detail 

4.1 Response to Parish Council’s Concerns 

4.1.1 A meeting was held at the Council Offices on the 14th November 2022 to facilitate a 

discussion between the Applicant and Parish Councils affected by the HGV movements 

associated with the proposed use.  The main aims of the meeting were for the Applicant to 

gain a better understanding of the concerns of local residents and for the Applicant to 

provide further clarification on the operational nature of the proposed straw storage use, 

including the routing of HGV’s 

Page 9

https://pa.melton.gov.uk/online-applications/files/0578A412FAD356744F7806B37CAD8CB7/pdf/21_01223_FUL-A_Page_-_Saltby_Village_Community_Engagement_Event_Notes_06.02.23-1151954.pdf
https://pa.melton.gov.uk/online-applications/files/0578A412FAD356744F7806B37CAD8CB7/pdf/21_01223_FUL-A_Page_-_Saltby_Village_Community_Engagement_Event_Notes_06.02.23-1151954.pdf
https://pa.melton.gov.uk/online-applications/files/0578A412FAD356744F7806B37CAD8CB7/pdf/21_01223_FUL-A_Page_-_Saltby_Village_Community_Engagement_Event_Notes_06.02.23-1151954.pdf


Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

4 

 

4.1.2 As outlined at the Planning Committee Meeting in October 2022 it would not be possible to 

control the movement of HGV’s outside of the application site. The site is located within 

Leicestershire but lies close to the boundary with Lincolnshire and HGV movements 

associated with the proposed use would travel on the highway network in both counties.  

For this reason, both Leicestershire and Lincolnshire County Highways Departments have 

been consulted on the application as the Local Highway Authorities. 

4.1.3 In all the scenarios proposed for the routing of HGV’s into and out of the site 

Leicestershire County Council Highways have advised the impacts of the development on 

highway safety would not be unacceptable, and when considered cumulatively with other 

developments, the impacts on the road network would not be severe.  Of relevance is 

LHA’s reiteration that it does not believe the proposed routing would be enforceable, as 

well as the following advice: 

• The retrospective application would not warrant junction capacity assessments;  

• No highway safety issues have been raised regarding the existing route; and  

• Croxton Road supports HGV movements beyond those associated with Saltby Airfield. 

Lincolnshire County Council Highway’s Department have also raised no objection to any 

of the proposed vehicle routes into and out of the site and reiterate that they do not object 

to the proposed development. 

4.1.4 As set out in Circular 11/95 ‘Use of conditions in planning permission’ para 3.: 

“Paragraphs 14-42 of the Annex, stress that conditions should only be imposed where 

they are both necessary and reasonable, as well as enforceable, precise and relevant 

both to planning and to the development to be permitted. Attention is particularly drawn to 

paragraphs 15-17 which advise that in considering whether a condition is necessary 

authorities should ask themselves whether planning permission would have to be refused 

if the requirements of that condition were not imposed. If it would not, then the condition 

needs special and precise justification. Attention is also drawn to paragraph 29 of the 

Annex, alerting authorities to a judgment with important implications for enforcing planning 

conditions.” 

4.1.5 In cases where development is considered to have adverse highway impacts which would 

otherwise warrant planning permission being refused it may be made acceptable through 

the applicant and the LPA or LHA entering into a vehicle routing agreement to require 

vehicles be routed so as to avoid certain roads, possibly at all times or possibly at certain 

times of day.  Such routing agreements must be freely entered into by the applicant. 

Where such a routing agreement is entered into, it would be expected that the applicant 

would police compliance with it and take appropriate action against any drivers who failed 

to comply with its terms.  In this case no adverse highway impacts resulting from the 

proposed development has been identified.  Therefore, any such condition requiring a 

vehicle routing agreement would fail to meet the tests of being reasonable and necessary 

set out in circular 11/95. 

4.1.6 This would not however, prevent the Applicant formulating a routing agreement on a 

voluntary basis with their contractors, which they could manage.  In the interests of 

transparency we have requested the submission of details of any voluntary routing 

arrangement to the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 10



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

5 

 

4.1.7 The concerns raised by the Parish Councils still stand, all of which have been previously 

addressed in the original Committee Report.  The additional concerns raised relating to 

the routing of vehicles along Gorse Lane can be given limited weight.  As outlined above 

the Local Highway Authority, as the statutory consultee on matters relating to the impact of 

development on the local highway network, do not consider the proposal’s impact on 

highway safety would be unacceptable, and the impacts on the road network would not be 

severe.   

4.1.8 Additional concerns have been raised in an objection from The British Horse Society and 

Leicestershire & Rutland Bridleways Association.  These organisations are not statutory 

consultees on planning applications.  Leicestershire County Council Highways are the 

statutory consultee who advise on the impact of development on public rights of way 

including bridleways.  They advised that the enjoyment of the bridleways would not be 

significantly affected and raised no safety concerns in relation to users of these public 

rights of way.  This was covered at para. 4.4.7 of the Committee Report.  The straw on site 

is and would continue to be stored in a way that would protect users of E84 which runs 

adjacent to the southern edge of the smaller of the two straw storage areas.  

4.1.9 With regards to BW F100 Sewstern Lane, a short length was closed so a runway could be 

built during World War II; it has not been used as a bridleway since this time.  It is not 

considered that the provision of a re-instated bridleway secured via a planning condition 

would meet with the tests of reasonableness, or necessary set out in Circular 11/95.  

4.1.10 It is important to recognise that HGV’s and large agricultural buildings already operate 

within the site and on the surrounding highway network, these vehicle movements are 

unrelated to the proposed use.  The scheme would generate a maximum of 40 two-way 

vehicle movements, which equates to 20 in and 20 out within a 12 hour window.  It is not 

considered that the vehicle movements generated by the proposed use would have an 

unacceptable impact upon highway safety, including users of the public rights of way, and 

the impacts on the road network would not be severe.   

5 Consultation & Feedback 

5.1 In response to the re-consultation undertaken comments have been received from the 

Parish Council, neighbouring residents, The British Horse Society and the Leicestershire & 

Rutland Bridleways Association, and the Local Highway Authority (LHA), Leicestershire 

and Lincolnshire County Council’s. 

5.2 Both Leicestershire and Lincolnshire County Council Highway Departments, as the LHA’s 

have raised no objection to the proposed alternative route for vehicles travelling away from 

the site and raise no objection on highway safety grounds. 

5.3 Saltby Parish Council have not objected and made no further comments. 

5.4 Croxton Kerrial Parish Council object stating: the Parish Council wish to state that their 

objection still stands exactly the same as before. This re-routing does not solve the traffic 

issues for Croxton Kerrial, therefore they do not wish to accept this latest information. 

5.5 Denton Parish Council object, in summary, stating: The alternative route namely (Gorse 

Lane) is not fit for purpose. The facility at Saltby is quite simply situated in the wrong place 

for this type of industrial use & with no direct access to an A road it is unsustainable. 

Page 11



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

6 

 

5.6 Harlaxton Parish Council object, in summary: On the grounds of road safety and 

environmental impact. All previous comments still apply.   

5.7 Hungerton and Wyville Parish Council object, in summary: The route is still not suitable 

and safe for the large straw lorries exiting the airfield.  Gorse Lane is not a suitable 

alternative as it is still a narrow road and even in a car there is not a lot of room to pass as 

the road is in such bad repair.  

5.8 The British Horse Society and Leicestershire & Rutland Bridleways Association object to 

the application on the grounds summarised below: 

a. Unacceptable that they were not consulted, and we trust the Borough Council will be 

more proactive in future. 

b. BW F100 is proposed as either an exit or an entrance without consideration for its 

use as a Public Right of Way, what provisions are being made for the safety of the 

PRoW users? 

c. BW F100 is the remnant of an ancient road to the Sewstern Lane that should have 

been restored as a bridleway after minerals were extracted some decades ago.  

They request its re-instatement is secured by planning condition unless the applicant 

agree to honour the existing commitment. 

d. BW E72 lies to the south of the proposed site entrance on the Hungerton road so will 

be crossed by vehicles, what measures will be put in place to ensure they give way 

to, and act considerately towards users of the bridal way. 

e. BW E84 crosses the Airfield it is not clear whether it will be affected by the 

operational area, if it is what measures will be put in place in mitigation? 

f. Whilst we fully understand the concerns of Croxton Kerrial residents, this is the 

shortest route to the A607 and keeps the heavy vehicles off the minor, quiet, roads 

that are well used for recreational purposes as the area is relatively well supplied 

with both bridleways and footpaths.   

f. It would put heavy traffic onto quiet local roads for a considerable distance.  Many of 

these roads have wide grass verges and are therefore an important recreational 

resource. 

g. It would particularly impact on BW E72 as that starts/ends on the Saltby-Hungerton 

road. 

h. It would cross the unsealed/recreational section of the Sewstern Lane. 

i. Poor site lights causing safety concerns. 

5.9 The objections raised by 2 local residents are summarised below: 

a. The Highways Authority don't seem to have made any visits to the narrow roads 

proposed before saying there are no problems;  

b. This particular road (Gorse Lane route) is heavily potholed and remains so after 

several attempts at patching;  

c. Heavy goods vehicles already use the road (Gorse Lane route) as a short cut from 

Croxton to Grantham, and there have been attempts to have a weight restriction on 

the road due to the lack of space for vehicles to pass in safety, and the need for cars 

Page 12



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

7 

 

to deviate on to the verge, and sometimes suffer damage to wheels and suspension to 

avoid oncoming heavy goods vehicles. 

d. The junction from Gorse Lane onto Tollmarche Road is wholly unsuitable for the 

proposed long-trailered vehicles, and so is the junction between the B1174 South 

Parade and the A52, the "McDonald's" corner. 

e. In the Summer, HGV's laden high with straw come along the road from the A1 to 

Hungerton, and along Ten Acre Lane. They don't move over, the oncoming motorist 

has to drive on the grass to avoid them. The problem persists year on year. 

6 Financial Implications 

6.1 Not applicable. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: N/A 

7 Legal and Governance Implications 

7.1 Legal and governance implications are addressed in the report and appendices where 

appropriate. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Tom Pickwell (Solicitor) 

8 Appendices 

8.1 Appendix A – Recommended Planning Conditions 

8.2 Appendix B – Recommended Informatives 

8.3 Appendix C – Committee report from 13 October 2022 Planning Committee 

Report Author: Helen White, Planning Officer 

Report Author Contact Details: 01664 502419 

helenwhite@melton.gov.uk 

Chief Officer Responsible: Paul Feehily, Interim Assistant Director for Planning 

Chief Officer Contact Details: 01664 502418 

pfeehily@melton.gov.uk 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Planning application ref. 21/01223/FUL - Appendix A 

 

Appendix A: Recommended Conditions  
 

1. The development shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of 

this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 as amended by S51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004. 

 

2. The approved development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the following 

plans: 

 

G.1398  Site location plan 

T3549 TA01 Block Plan 

T3549 TA02 Northern access arrangement 

T3549 TA03 Southern access arrangement 

 

Submitted to and received by the Local Planning Authority on the 26 October 2021, 

and the 24 January 2022. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

3. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as the 

access arrangements shown on Drawings 23549 TA02 and TA03 have been 

implemented in full.  

 

Reason: To ensure that vehicles entering and leaving the site may pass each other 

clear of the highway, in a slow and controlled manner, in the interests of general 

highway safety and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 

4. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as 

vehicular visibility splays as shown on Drawings 23549 TA01 and TA03 have been 

provided at the site access. These shall thereafter be permanently maintained with 

nothing within those splays higher than 0.6 metres above the level of the adjacent 

footway/verge/highway.  

 

Reason: To afford adequate visibility at the access to cater for the expected volume of 

traffic joining the existing highway network, in the interests of general highway safety, 

and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 

Page 15

Appendix A



 

 

5. Straw/hay bales associated with the use herby approved shall not at any time extend 

beyond the storage area’s shown on block plan ref. T3549 TA01; be stacked over a 

maximum height of 10 metres as measured from the adjacent ground level; or exceed 

a total maximum of 42,000 bales being stored on the site at any one time.    

 

Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the locality and neighbouring occupiers.  

 
6. The use hereby permitted, including any associated HGV vehicle movements, shall 

only take place between the following hours: 
0700 to 1900 on Mondays to Fridays (inclusive). 
The use must not take place at any time whatsoever on Sundays or on Bank or Public 
Holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residential properties. 
 

7. HGV movements associated with the development herby approved shall enter the site 
via the southern access off The Butts and exit via the northern access off Wyville Road; 
and the number of two-way HGV movements shall not exceed 40 per day.   
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residential properties. 

 

8. Prior to exiting the site all HGV’s associated with the use hereby approved shall be 
swept to remove loose straw and hay.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the nearby residential properties. 
 

 

Page 16



 

 

Planning application ref. 21/01223/FUL – Appendix B 

Appendix B: Recommended Informatives 
 
1. This decision has been reached taking into account the requirements of paragraph 38 of 

the National Planning Policy Framework 2021 in approaching decisions on proposed 
development in a positive and creative way. The Local Planning Authority has 
endeavoured to use the full range of planning tools available to work proactively with 
applicants to secure developments that will improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area seeking to approve applications for sustainable 
development where possible. 

 
2. Planning Permission does not give you approval to work on the public highway. To carry 

out off-site works associated with this planning permission, separate approval must first 
be obtained from Leicestershire County Council as Local Highway Authority. This will 
take the form of a major section 184 permit/section 278 agreement. It is strongly 
recommended that you make contact with Leicestershire County Council at the earliest 
opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed. The Local Highway Authority 
reserve the right to charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing maintenance where 
the item in question is above and beyond what is required for the safe and satisfactory 
functioning of the highway. For further information please refer to the Leicestershire 
Highway Design Guide which is available at https://resources.leicestershire.gov.uk/lhdg  

 

 

Page 17

Appendix B

https://resources.leicestershire.gov.uk/lhdg


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

1 

 

 

Planning Committee 
13 October 2022 

Report of: Assistant Director for Planning and 
Delivery 

       

  
  

 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to 
use for the import, storage, and export (B8 use) of 
straw for commercial purposes; construction of 
weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) at 
Saltby Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

Corporate Priority: Delivering sustainable and inclusive growth in 
Melton 

Relevant Ward Member(s): Councillor Alan Hewson (Croxton Kerrial) 

 

Date of consultation with Ward 
Member(s): 

15 November 2021 

Exempt Information: No 

1 Summary 

1.1 The site relates to a former airfield, approximately a kilometre east of the village of Saltby.  

Although some of the buildings associated with the airfield use have been removed the 

vast majority of the hard standing has been retained and these existing fixed surfaced are 

being used for the storage of the straw bales along with the existing internal road 

infrastructure.    

1.2 The site is located within the open countryside.  It is accessed off The Butts to the west 

and from Wyville Road to the north.  Two straw storage areas exist within the site, the 

main storage area is located centrally between with two access points adjacent to the 

weighbridge, with a smaller straw storage area located to the south.  The main straw 

storage area lies 750m to the east of Saltby.   

 

Page 19

Appendix C

http://www.melton.gov.uk/
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

2 

 

 

Page 20



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

3 

 

 

1.3 The site is connected to the wider highway network via the A607 which is located 

approximately 3.25km or 2miles north of the site.  

1.4 As well as the currently unauthorised straw storage, the current uses of the Airfield include 

arable agriculture, agricultural storage and a glider club (Buckminster Gliding Club).  Areas 

of crop planting also exist alongside the tracks and hard surfaced runways associated with 

the previous aerodrome use. 

1.5 Planning application ref. 18/00703/FUL for change of use of former airfield runway to open 

storage (B8) use was refused on the grounds the proposed development would be 

inappropriate development within the countryside and would be akin to an industrial use 

within a rural location which would have an unacceptable adverse impact on the 

immediate and wider landscape by virtue of its use, scale, design and form.  This decision 

was appealed, and the Planning Inspector considered the main issue to be the effect of 

the proposed development upon the character and appearance of the countryside.  The 

Inspector dismissed the appeal concluding the proposal would have an adverse impact 

upon the character and appearance of the countryside.   

1.6 The application seeks to utilise 7.3ha of land within the site for the importation, temporary 

open storage, and exportation of straw. The exported straw would be taken to Sleaford 

Renewable Energy Plant, a straw burning non-fossil fuel energy plant.  A weighbridge has 

been provided within the site.  A storage container within the site is used as a welfare 

building. 

1.7 The site currently employs 3 full time members of staff, which can increase to 6 at peak 

periods. 

1.8 The application seeks to support the running of the Saltby Estate agricultural operations 

through farm diversification.  Farm diversification in support of existing agricultural 

operations is supported in planning policy terms.  The NPPF is supportive of a prosperous 

rural economy including at para.84 b) the development and diversification of agricultural 

and other land-based rural businesses.  Para 85 recognises the use of previously 

developed land, and sites that are physically well-related to existing settlements, should 

be encouraged where suitable opportunities exist. 

1.9 The outbound HGV route from the site has been amended so that the A607 would be 

accessed via Hungerton, south of Denton rather that via Croxton Kerrial which would 

remain the inbound route to the site from the A607.  The proposed hours of operation are 

Mondays to Fridays between 7.00am and 7.00pm with no working outside these hours or 

at weekends or on bank holidays.  A maximum of 40 HGVs would visit the site on any 

single working day. 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

1. Approval subject to conditions set out in Appendix C. 

2 Reason for Recommendations 

2.1 Saltby Airfield remains previously developed land where there are a number of agricultural 

and commercial uses in various locations around this site.  The siting of this proposed 

straw storage is not too different to these and therefore not out of character with the area.  

With the imposition of relevant conditions, including restricting the hours of operation and 

Page 21



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

4 

 

the daily number of vehicle movements, the development is deemed to not have a 

detrimental impact upon highway safety or residential amenity.  There are no ecology or 

flood risk implications.  Therefore, taking all of these considerations into account, on 

balance approval is recommended.   

Page 22



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

5 

 

3 Key Factors 

3.1 Reason for Committee Determination 

3.1.1 This application is required to be presented to the Committee due to receiving objections 

to the application from more than 10 households, contrary to the recommendation in line 

with the constitution. 

3.2 Relevant Policies 

3.2.1 The Melton Local Plan (LP) 2011-2036 was adopted on 10 October 2018 and forms part 

of the Development Plan for the area. 

3.2.2 The Design of Development Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) was adopted on 

24th February 2022.   

3.2.3 The Croxton Kerrial Neighbourhood Plan (NP) has reached Regulation 14 stage but has 

not been formally adopted, therefore very limited weight can be afforded to this document. 

3.2.4 The Local Plan is up to date and consistent with the latest revised versions of Government 

Guidance as contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.  

3.2.5 Please see Appendix D for a list of all applicable policies. 

3.3 Main Issues 

3.3.1 Position under the Development Plan Policies 

3.3.2 Impact upon the highway network and highway safety 

3.3.3 Impact upon amenity 

3.3.4 Impact upon ecology 

3.3.5 Impact upon the character of the area 

4 Report Detail 

4.1 Position under the Development Plan Policies 

4.1.1 The site lies to the east of the settlement of Saltby and Melton Local Plan policies SS1-

SS2 apply.  The settlement hierarchy set out in Local Plan Policy SS2 defines Saltby as a 

rural settlement.  The site lies within the open countryside 450m from the closest dwelling 

to the southwest, The Sidings, Saltby Road and 800m to the west on The Butts.  Policy 

SS2 states that within the open countryside, new development will be restricted to that 

which is necessary and appropriate in the open countryside.   

4.1.2 Local Plan policy EC2 seeks to support economic development and allows employment 

growth in rural areas, by amongst other things, the diversification of existing farming 

businesses, dependant on the nature of activities involved, the character of the site, and 

accessibility. 

4.2 Principle of Development 

4.2.1 As well as Local Plan policy EC2 diversification of agricultural and other rural businesses 

is supported by paragraph 84 of the NPPF.  The proposal comprises the diversification of 

the agricultural operations on the Saltby Estate, the rental income derived from the change 

of use of the land would benefit the existing farming enterprise ensuring its viability.  It will 

create new jobs and safeguard existing ones.   

Page 23



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

6 

 

4.2.2 Saltby Estate is an agricultural enterprise covering some 3000 acres growing a wide 

variety of arable crops including wheat and beet.  Alongside this they have a large dairy 

unit.  The land within the application is situated within the arable area of the farm. 

4.2.3 Straw storage has taken place on the site to some degree since August 2017.  It was 

initially stored on the site for the purposes of agriculture for example animal bedding and 

mushroom compost.  The amount of straw stored on the site was significantly increased to 

provide an emergency store for Sleaford Renewable Energy Plant.  The industrial scale of 

the storage within the site has resulted in a material change of use of the land from 

agriculture to storage and distribution. 

4.2.4 The supporting text for policy EC2 indicates that such rural economic development 

proposals should either involve the re-use of existing redundant buildings or be entirely 

contained within an existing enclosed area with no significant adverse impact upon the 

area.  The application site is not enclosed and is largely sited away from other built forms.  

However, straw storage is not an alien feature within the rural landscape and is not 

considered to be visually incongruous in the same way as a more general storage use.  

4.2.5 The agricultural operations on the Saltby Estate would be diversified because of the 

proposed straw storage.  As such the proposal is supported in principle in land use terms.  

Other matters including the character of the site and accessibility are discussed below.   

4.3 Impact upon the character of the area 

4.3.1 Policy EN1 seeks to ensure that new development is sensitive to its landscape setting.  

Paragraph 170 of the NPPF indicates that planning decisions should contribute to and 

enhance the natural and local environment by recognising the intrinsic character and 

beauty of the countryside. 

4.3.2 The storage areas within the site are located a long way from any neighbouring buildings, 

the highway, or public footpaths.  However, the straw stacks within the storage areas are 

visible across the site as there are long range views over the surrounding, fairly level 

fields.  Although there are some earth bunds to the perimeter of the site, these are low in 

height and do not fully screen the storage areas.  Additionally, the storage areas can be 

viewed by users of the neighbouring glider club and walkers who use the site informally.   

4.3.3 The site has been used for the storage of straw since 2017.  Straw bales are produced 

through agricultural processes and are a familiar feature within the open countryside.  The 

scale of the straw storage within the application site exceeds what would be deemed 

necessary for agricultural use.  Notwithstanding this, the proposal is uniform in design with 

the straw bales neatly presented, the straw bales would not be stacked over a maximum 

height of 10 metres measured from the adjacent ground level, and a maximum of 42,000 

bales would be stored on the site at any one time, all recommended to be secured by 

conditions.   

4.3.4 Existing areas of hard standing have been utilised for their storage and to enable access 

to them.  The weighbridge and the welfare building are low in height, and the welfare 

building is small in its scale and these features are predominantly screened from views 

outside of the site.   

4.3.5 It is not uncommon to see former airfields in storage use, including The Airfield, Dalby 

Road, Melton Mowbray which is used for storage housing 54 storage containers, with 

planning permission ref.21/00759/FUL recently being granted for the erection of a further 

Page 24



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

7 

 

56.  Unlike the previously refused scheme for the open storage of prefabricated houses, 

as outlined above, it is not considered that the storage of straw bales is an incongruous 

feature within the landscape.    

4.4 Highway Safety 

4.4.1 The NPPF Paragraph 111, which advises that "Development should only be prevented or 

refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway 

safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe."  No 

definition of severe is provided.  However, as outlined in the response from Lincolnshire 

County Council the Planning Inspector decisions regarding severity share common 

considerations: 

• The highway network is over-capacity, usually for period extending beyond the 

peak hours. 

• The level of provision of alternative transport modes. 

• Whether the level of queuing on the network causes safety issues. 

4.4.2 In view of these criteria, Lincolnshire Highways and the Lead Local Flood Authority do not 

consider that this proposal would result in a severe impact with regard to the NPPF.  This 

view is welcomed by Leicestershire County Council as the Local Highway Authority (LHA).  

The LHA advise that, in its view, the impacts of the development on highway safety would 

not be unacceptable, and when considered cumulatively with other developments, the 

impacts on the road network would not be severe. 

4.4.3 It has been demonstrated that an articulated vehicle would be able to access/egress both 

access points in a forward gear.  Suitable visibility splays in accordance with the speed 

limit effect at the corresponding site access frontages can be achieved subject to 

amendments to the site boundary, on land which is within the Applicant's control.  It is 

recommended that the provision of the required visibility splays is secured by condition. 

4.4.4 With regards to the proposed re-routing the LHA do not consider it would be necessary in 

highway safety terms or enforceable.  It is noted that Wyville Road is an unclassified road, 

and the proposed routing generally includes roads of a narrower width than the current 

route; there are no highway safety issues, and Croxton Road supports HGV movements 

beyond those associated with Saltby Airfield. 

4.4.5 Regarding trip generation and traffic impacts of the proposed development it is understood 

that trip generation is highly seasonal, with peak trips taking place in the harvest period of 

September annually.  Analysis of data from previous years showed that on average, 

during September 2020, the site generated approximately 40 HGVs per day equivalent to 

3 HGV movements per hour.  Of the annual HGV trips generated by the site around 10% 

of these two-way movements relate to the existing agricultural operations.  Based on the 

data provided during the September peak the proposed storage use, as a worst case 

scenario, would generate an average of 200 two way trips per week; with no trips being 

generated during other months.  The applicant has indicated that vehicle movements 

could be limited to a maximum of 40 HGVs visiting the site on any single working day.    

4.4.6 The proposed site layout would provide sufficient parking and turning provision alongside 

appropriate operational measures.  It is considered that the development will be self-

Page 25



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

8 

 

contained and not result in overspill to the local highway network.  The site access and 

layout would also provide a suitable access for emergency vehicles. 

4.4.7 Public Bridleways E72 and F100 run through the site and E84 is located just to the south, 

as shown on the plan below, yet it is not considered that the enjoyment of the Bridleways 

would be significantly affected. 

 

4.4.8 Concerns have been raised in letters of objection from local residents relating to highway 

safety, both regarding the safety of the site access, and the impact of the vehicles on the 

safety of the wider road network.  A report completed by ADC Infrastructure on behalf of 

Hungerton Farms, a neighbouring landowner, has been reviewed by the LHA.  The LHA 

dismiss the comments that the proposal fails to promote sustainable transport modes, it 

misses the nuances of para.111 of the NPPF.  It is not considered feasible for a site 

associated with the transport of straw between rural areas to promote sustainable 

transport methods.  Although the ADC Infrastructure report states there, 'would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety' it provides no further information regarding safety 

but instead focuses on capacity.   

4.4.9 As the application is retrospective, its impact on highway safety can be reviewed.  The site 

has been in operation since 2017.  Personal Injury Collision (PIC) data for the most recent 

Page 26



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

9 

 

five years has been reviewed, two PICs were identified which were both recorded as 

'slight' occurring in separate locations with no discernible links between the collisions or 

with the site.  It is therefore concluded that the proposed development will not exacerbate 

any known highway safety considerations. 

4.4.10 Prior to the proposed use the site was used in part for the storage of straw for agriculture, 

this along with other farming operations associated with the site generating an average of 

84 tractor with trailer movements per week.   Based on recorded vehicle movements the 

average across the year the proposal generates 40 HGV movements per day (1 every 18 

minutes), with the maximum recorded HGV movements being 86 per day (1 every 9 

minutes) since operation began.  Around 10% of these movements continue to be for 

agricultural purposes.   

4.4.11 Overall, for the reasons outlined above, it is considered that the proposal’s impact upon 

highway safety would not be severe.    

4.5 Impact upon residential amenities 

4.5.1 Separation distances of 800m between the main straw storage area, and 450m between 

the smaller storage area, and the closest residential properties exist.  The storage of the 

straw bales generates little in the way of noise, odours or general disturbance.  For these 

reasons the storage itself is not considered to have an undue impact upon local 

occupant’s amenities.  The vehicle movements associated with the proposed use 

however, do represent an intensification over and above the existing agricultural use; and 

have the potential to impact upon residential amenity.   

4.5.2 Firstly it is important to recognise that at its peak, in September 2020, the greatest number 

of two way vehicle movements generated by the straw storage use was 86 in one day, 7 

vehicles per hour.  As set out in the submission this level of activity formed part of a one-

off event to fully stock the site with straw bales, which is unlikely to be a repeated.  The 

purpose of the storage within the site is to function as an emergency store for the Sleaford 

Renewable Power Station.  In the future vehicle movements associated with the site would 

still involve a level of seasonality, peaking in line with the September harvest when a 

degree of re-stocking would take place, and if the emergency store was required to 

provide straw to the power station.  However, the number of HGV vehicle movements 

associated with the straw storage, and their hours of operation, could be controlled by 

planning conditions.  The submission suggests hours of operation for the storage business 

could be limited to 0700 to 1900 Monday to Friday, and a maximum of 40 HGVs would 

visit the site on any single working day which is considered reasonable. 

4.5.3 As set out in the submission, there are very large periods of the year where there are 

absolutely no vehicles, associated with the proposed straw storage use, at all coming to or 

from the site.  The hours of operation would provide clear guidance as to the extent of 

permitted operations.  However, it is important to recognise that the site is a working 

agricultural unit and any conditions relating to the straw storage activities would not apply 

to the Estate’s normal agricultural activities. 

4.5.4 Nonetheless this increase in vehicle movements to and from the site would impact upon 

the amenity of nearby residential properties as a result of noise and vibrations.  Of 

relevance are those properties located on Saltby Road, Croxton Kerrial immediately to the 

south of the junction with the A607.  These dwellings are located close to the highway and 

so large vehicles passing by would result in general noise and disturbance to the 

Page 27



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

10 

 

detriment of their amenity.  Dwellings located on The Butts opposite the southern site 

access would be similarly impacted.  This identified harm could be mitigate by the re-

routing of outbound vehicles from the site which would no longer be routed to the A607 via 

The Butts or Croxton Kerrial, reducing the potential impact of vehicle movements by 50%.  

Further to this, as outlined above, HGV movements to and from the site could be 

controlled by planning conditions including restricting their timing and numbers.  The 

purpose of these controls would be in the interests of residential amenity rather than 

highway safety. 

4.5.5 Although the proposed routing would not be justified in highway safety terms it would 

benefit the amenity of neighbouring residential properties.  It would not be possible to 

control the direction of travel of HGV’s associated with the proposed development beyond 

the application site by planning condition.  For the same reason it would not be possible to 

require all straw/hay deliveries to the site to be sheeted; or for regular road sweeping to 

clear straw which may have been deposited on the highway.  However, the applicant may 

wish to set these controls as part of a site, or operational management plan. 

4.5.6 Proposed vehicle routing 

 

Page 28



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

11 

 

4.5.7 The site access’s also serves an existing agricultural business, and given its rural location 

there are several surrounding agricultural enterprises; therefore, there is an existing 

situation where large agricultural vehicles use the roads adjacent to and surrounding the 

site.  Owing to this existing situation and given future vehicle movements would be 

acceptable it is considered that the proposal would not have an adverse effect on the 

amenity of neighbouring occupiers.  In addition to this, strict operating times and limits to 

vehicle movements could be secured by condition to ensure that no unreasonable 

disturbance results from this use change. 

4.5.8 In reality, there are very large periods of the year where there are absolutely no vehicles at 

all coming to or from the site but the suggested hours are considered a reasonable 

approach to provide clear guidance as to the extent of permitted operations and protect 

residents from any perceived disturbance in the evenings, early mornings and at 

weekends. It is of course important to also highlight that the site is a working agricultural 

unit and any conditions relating to the hay storage activities would of course not apply to 

normal agricultural activities. 

4.6 Ecology 

4.6.1 The application seeks retrospective permission for the storage of straw on existing areas 

of hard standing.  Concerns have been raised in letters of objection received from local 

residents that the transportation of straw would result in some shedding along the 

roadside which would be detrimental to protected species, in particular grass verges 

designated sites of scientific interest (SSSI).  Natural England, the technical consultee, 

have provided advice specifically on this matter and raised no concerns. 

4.6.2 The shedding of loose material from vehicles to and from the site has also been 

addressed by the applicant.  On site practices are in place which seek to ensure vehicles 

are swept before leaving the site so that loose debris is likely to be very minimal.  A 

planning condition requiring this practice to be maintained formally has been suggested to 

further mitigate harm.  In addition, the applicant runs regular sweeping vehicles along the 

Saltby Road and Wyville Road to remove any debris that does remain 

4.7 Flood Risk/Drainage 

4.7.1 As outlined above the straw bales are stored on existing areas of hardstanding.  The site 

is located within flood zone 1 and is not an area at high risk of surface water flooding.  

4.8 Other Matters 

4.8.1 It has been questioned in letters of representation received, including from neighbouring 
parish councils, if the development proposed is EIA development.  EIA development is 
defined under The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017 as: development which is either— (a) Schedule 1 development; or (b) 
Schedule 2 development likely to have significant effects on the environment by virtue of 
factors such as its nature, size or location.  The proposal would not represent development 
under either Schedule 1 or 2 of the EIA regulations.  Had an EIA been required guidance 
suggests two rules should be followed when searching for the significance of highways 
impacts including: road links where traffic flows are predicted to increase by more than 30% 
(or where the number of heavy goods vehicles is predicted to increase by more than 30%); 
or any other specifically sensitive areas where traffic flows have increased by 10% or more.  
However, as the proposal is not EIA development there is no need to assess the application 
further under the EIA guidance.  

Page 29



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

12 

 

4.8.2 Concerns have been raised in letters of objection relating to the site as a potential fire hazard 
given the amount of straw stored on the site.  Planning polices and legislation do not directly 
cover fire risk.  In this case the safe storage of straw bales is covered by the Health and 
Safety Executive (HSE). The planning system should not duplicate other regulatory 
requirements, including those relating to fire safety, or seek to secure them using planning 
conditions.   

4.8.3 Part of Saltby is covered by a conservation area, a designated heritage asset.  The distance 
between the proposed storage areas, and the nature of the proposed development is such 
that it is not considered that the proposal would impact upon the setting of the conservation 
area. 

4.8.4 The applicant has made it clear that the straw / hay storage activity is a very important 
aspect of the Estates operation, but it does not wish to see this result in any unreasonable 
impacts upon the villages of Saltby and Croxton Kerrial. The scheme has therefore been 
amended to introduce controls and working practices which would mitigate harm, resulting 
in an acceptable scheme. 

5 Consultation & Feedback 

5.1 Site notices were posted, and neighbouring properties consulted. 

5.2 125 objections have been received from 110 households 

6 Financial Implications 

6.1 Not applicable 

Financial Implications reviewed by: N/A 

7 Legal and Governance Implications 

7.1 Legal implications have been included in the main body of the report. No specific issues 

are identified. Legal advisors will also be present at the meeting. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Tom Pickwell (Solicitor) 

8 Background Papers 

8.1 Planning application ref.18/00703/FUL - Change of use of former airfield runway to open 

storage (B8) use 

8.2 Planning appeal ref. APP/Y2430/W/18/3213585  

9 Appendices 

9.1 Appendix A Summary of Statutory Consultation responses  

9.2 Appendix B Summary of Representations Received 

9.3 Appendix C Recommended Planning Conditions 

9.4 Appendix D Informatives 

9.5 Appendix E: Available Development Management Policies 

Report Author: Helen White, Planning Development Officer 

Report Author Contact Details: 01664 502419 

helenwhite@melton.gov.uk 

Chief Officer Responsible: Peter Baguley, Assistant Director for Planning 

Page 30



Planning Report 

21/01223/FUL Change of use of former airfield land to use for the  import, 
storage and export (B8 use) of straw for commercial purposes; 
construction of weighbridge and welfare building (retrospective) Saltby 
Airfield, Skillington Road, Sproxton 

13 

 

Chief Officer Contact Details: 01664 502359 

pbaguley@melton.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

1 

 

 

Planning Committee 
30 March 2023 

Report of: Interim Assistant Director for 
Planning  

       

  
  

 

21/00344/OUT - Outline planning application for the 
demolition of an existing brick building and the 
subsequent residential development of up to 24 
dwellings, including vehicular access and an 
associated drainage scheme 

Land at Main Street, Wymondham 

Corporate Priority: Delivering sustainable and inclusive growth in Melton 

Relevant Ward Member(s): Councillor Malise Graham 

Date of consultation with Ward 
Member(s): 

11 August 2022 

Exempt Information: No 

1 Summary 

Page 33

Agenda Item 4.2

http://www.melton.gov.uk/
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

2 

 

 

 

1.1 The application site relates to a parcel of land located to the north of Main Street and the 

west of Brick Yard Lane in Wymondham.  

1.2 The site currently consists of a single agricultural field, which is used as grazing pasture 

for sheep and contains a single storey brick storage barn with informal agricultural access 

onto Main Street. The levels of the site slope gently from south to north and there are 

mature hedgerows running along the boundaries. 

1.3 Outline planning permission with all matters reserved except access is sought for the 

erection of up to 24 dwellings at the site including vehicular access, and drainage. The 

existing brick building at the site, which is described within the submitted design and 

access statement as a brick storage building and would be demolished as part of the 

scheme.   

1.4 Following discussions with officers the original proposal for 34 dwellings which also 

incorporated the reserve site to the north was amended to the current proposal described 

above and a reduced site area that now only includes the allocated site.  

1.5 An indicative site layout plan has also been provided to indicate how the site could 

accommodate 24 dwellings, however the layout and scale of these properties as shown is 

not for consideration. 

1.6 The proposed development would consist of 14 x open market; 9 affordable housing for rent 

and 1 x affordable home ownership – all houses. Housing mix is currently not indicated and 

would be considered and secured at Reserved Matter Stage via planning condition 

attached to any grant of outline consent. (Refer to condition 3 Appendix C)  

1.7 The application has been allocated within the Wymondham and Edmonthorpe 

Neighbourhood Plan for housing with an estimated capacity of 20 dwellings and allocated 

for housing within the Melton Local Plan under Policy C1 (A) Ref. WYM3 with an 

estimated capacity of 22 dwellings  

 

Page 34



Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

1. It is recommended that the Planning Application is APPROVED subject to conditions set out in 
Appendix C and a Section 106 Agreement to secure contributions towards: 

(i) Secondary and Post 16 Education Provision 

(ii) Contribution to sustainable transport options 

(iii) Waste services contribution  

(iv) On Site Affordable Housing Provision 

 

2 Reason for Recommendations 

2.1 The proposal accords with the requirements of Policies SS1 and SS2 which strongly 

emphasise the need to provide housing in locations that can take advantage of 

sustainable travel and make appropriate provision for parking and ensure that there is not 

a significant impact caused to the Highway network. Wymondham is a 'service centre' 

under policy SS2 and identified as appropriate for a limited quantity of development in the 

form of allocations and accommodation of 'windfall'. 

2.2 The site is allocated for housing purposes in the Neighbourhood Plan under Policy H2 with 

an estimated capacity of 20 and Policy C1 (A) Ref. WYM3 of the Melton Local Plan. 

2.3 Affordable housing provision remains one of the Council’s key priorities. This application 

delivers the required level of affordable housing (in line with the Melton Local Plan) that 

helps to meet identified local needs. Accordingly, the application presents a vehicle for the 

delivery of 10 affordable housing units, of a type that supports the local market housing 

needs. The final mix of affordable housing would be secured by Section 106 Agreement. 

2.4 The application is in outline and demonstrates how this allocation could be delivered 

including the site specific criteria applied by the Plan.  This report will go on to show that 

the principle of the proposal is compliant with the policies of the development plan as a 

whole when considering the Neighbourhood Plan and the Local Plan. 

2.5 The development is considered to not result in a significant impact upon highway safety 

and a safe and suitable access is achieved to the site from Main Street. Sufficient off 

street parking provision can be secured as part of consideration of the proposed layout at 

detailed reserved matters stage. 

2.6 Should Planning Permission be granted a further application would be submitted for 

“Reserved Matters” which would consider the following points Appearance, Landscaping, 

Layout and Scale.  These matters are not considered within this report due to the 

application being submitted as an outline planning application with only access to be 

determined at this stage. 

3 Key Factors 

3.1 Reason for Committee Determination 

3.1.1 This application is required to be presented to the Committee due to receiving more than 

10 letters of representation from separate households contrary to the recommendation. 

3.2 Relevant Policies 

3.2.1 The Melton Local Plan (LP) 2011-2036 was adopted on 10 October 2018 and forms part 

of the Development Plan for the area. 

Page 35



Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

4 

 

3.2.2 The Design of Development Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) was adopted on 

24th February 2022.   

3.2.3 Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) was adopted 23rd 

September 2021 

3.2.4 The Local Plan is up to date and consistent with the latest revised versions of Government 

Guidance as contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.  

3.2.5 The Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan was made 6th June 2018 

3.2.6 Please see Appendix D for a list of all applicable policies. 

3.3 Main Issues 

3.3.1 Position under the Development Plan Policies 

3.3.2 Principle of development 

3.3.3 Affordable Housing and Housing Mix 

3.3.4 Access (Matter for consideration at this stage) 

3.3.5 Design Principles and other Material Planning Considerations 

3.3.6 Flood Risk and Drainage 

3.3.7 Impact upon Ecology 

3.3.8 Impact upon Archaeology 

4 Report Detail 

4.1 Position under the Development Plan Policies 

4.1.1 The site is within the settlement and limits to development of Wymondham, as identified 

within Policy SD1 of the Neighbourhood Plan. Accordingly policies SS1 and SS2 of the 

Melton Local Plan apply. These two policies reflect the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and set 

out the strategy of delivering housing across Melton borough. Wymondham is identified in 

the Local Plan as a Service Centre. 

4.1.2 The Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan allocates the site for housing 

(reference Lower Brick Yard Lane) with a capacity for approximately 20 dwellings. 

4.1.3 Other material considerations are the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the 

Design SPD, Housing Mix and Affordable Housing SPD, Developer Contributions SPD. 

4.2 Principle of Development 

4.2.1 The proposal accords with the requirements of Policies SS1 and SS2 which strongly 

emphasise the need to provide housing in locations that can take advantage of 

sustainable travel and make appropriate provision for parking and ensure that there is not 

a significant adverse impact on the Highway network.  

4.2.2 Wymondham is identified as a ‘Service Centre' under Policy C1(A) of the Local Plan and 

as such is appropriate for a limited quantity of development in the form of allocations and 

accommodation of smaller sites. 

4.2.3 The application site is allocated for housing within the Wymondham and Edmonthorpe 

Neighbourhood Plan as identified by Policy H2 Housing Allocations (Lower Brick Yard 

Lane) with an approximate capacity of 20 dwellings as well as the Melton Local plan under 

Page 36



Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

5 

 

Policy C1 (A) Ref. WYM3. The site is within the limits to development of Wymondham as 

identified within Policy SD3 of the Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan 

4.2.4 Policy C1 (A)of the Melton Local Plan states that  

Housing proposals will be supported where they provide: 

1. A mix of dwellings in accordance with Policy C2; 

2. Affordable housing in accordance with Policy C4; 

3. The necessary infrastructure required to support development in accordance with Policy 

IN1; and 

4. High quality design in accordance with Policy D1. 

5. The requirements as set out in Appendix 1 of the Melton Local Plan or relevant 

Neighbourhood Plan. 

4.2.5 Policy H2 (Housing Allocations) of the Neighbourhood Plan advises that development will 

be permitted for the 6 locations shown for housing development subject to criteria, which 

for the Lower Brick Yard Lane site are as follows; 

4.2.6 The development should provide for approximately 20 dwellings;  

• At least 37% of the dwellings should be affordable; 

• There should be a mix of housing types in accordance with Policy H4 of the 

Neighbourhood Development Plan and other evidence including the Housing and 

Economic Needs Assessment;  

• Broadly the development should follow the template provided by the Old Manor Gardens 

development in terms of design, materials and density  

• Appropriate flood and drainage assessments for the development should incorporate 

strategies to prevent flooding across the site and mitigate flooding from the site onto Main 

Street, taking into account inter alia Policy ENV8 of the Neighbourhood Plan;  

• In view of the scale of the development support for traffic management measures and/or 

for relocating or otherwise enhancing the Village Hall should be given so long as it is 

demonstrated that any financial contribution sought is necessary to make the development 

acceptable in planning terms, is directly related to the development and is fairly and 

reasonably related in scale and kind to the development;  

• Landscaping to the North of the development to include the planting of woodland habitat 

to aid water retention and add to local biodiversity;  

• Access should be via Main Street, over land that is under the developer’s control, and 

not via Brickyard Lane 

4.2.7 In light of the above policy guidance, the following comments are made in relation to each 

criteria point of Policy C1 (A) and Policy H2 of the Neighbourhood Plan: 

4.3 Affordable Housing and Housing Mix 

4.3.1 The revised application form states that 10 of the 24 units proposed would be affordable, 

which equates to 40% meeting the required 37% stated within the Neighbourhood Plan 

Policy and the 40% required within the Melton Local Plan. 

4.3.2 The mix of houses in terms of number and size is currently unknown and not included as 

part of this outline application. Therefore a condition is recommended that would ensure 

Page 37



Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

6 

 

that the area’s local market housing need would be met on the site through a mix of house 

types and sizes as part of the consideration of the reserved matters application. See 

condition 3 in appendix C. 

4.3.3 This would ensure a suitable mix of housing is delivered, to meet local housing needs and 

to ensure the development is in accordance with the housing mix Local Plan and Policy 

H2 and H4 of the Neighbourhood Plan. 

4.4 Infrastructure 

4.4.1 A Section 106 Agreement is recommended to secure full contributions relating towards 

education, sustainable travel and healthcare as detailed below. These are based on the 

‘up to’ figure of 24 and would need to be expressed as a ‘per house’ amount to ensure that 

the contributions reflect the number of dwellings that come forward at reserved matters 

stage. 

- Libraries - £724.74 

- Waste - £1,983.84 

- LCC Secondary Post 16 Education - £148,001.52 

- LCC Highways – (travel Packs at £52.98 per dwelling, bus passes 2 per dwelling and 

£510 per pass, information display case £120, pole and flag £170)   

4.5 Conclusion on principle of development 

4.5.1 The site is located within the limits to development for Wymondham, a Service Centre 

within the settlement hierarchy and allocated for housing within the Neighbourhood Plan 

which makes clear that development will be supported subject to a number of criteria 

within Policy H2 of the Neighbourhood Plan. Policy C1 (A) of the Melton Local Plan also 

supports housing proposals on allocated sites subject to criteria 

4.5.2 The proposed development is considered to meet with the basic criteria within Policies H2 

and C1 (A) or be capable of meeting these through further submission at reserved matters 

stage discharge of suitable worded condition attached to any grant of outline consent. 

4.5.3 The development of the application site would be consistent with the spatial strategy, 

would provide support for the maintenance and enhancement of local services, contribute 

to the choice of a range of housing sites in sustainable locations in the Borough and offer 

significant benefits by helping to meet housing needs, which is fundamental to achieving 

sustainable pattern of high quality development and the first strategic objective of the 

Melton Local Plan. 

4.5.4 The development provides potential for sympathetic design in keeping with the character 

of the Area, careful landscaping, biodiversity, an acceptable access, contributions towards 

infrastructure, flood risk mitigation and sustainable drainage opportunities and as such is 

considered to accord with Policies SS1, SS2, C1 (A) of the Melton Local Plan and Policy 

H2 of the Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan. 

4.6 Access (matter for consideration at this stage) 

4.6.1 As part of the outline planning application submitted the one matter that is being requested 

for consideration is access.  The following section of the report will consider the location of 

the proposed access and assess this against Local and National Planning Policy and 

includes comments received from the County Highway Authority as the statutory consultee 

and experts on this matter. 

Page 38



Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

7 

 

4.7 Access from Main Street 

4.7.1 Both the submitted indicative layout and transport statement confirm that the vehicular 

access to the site would be via Main Street. Policy C1 (A) of the Melton Local Plan and 

Policy H2 of the Neighbourhood Plan require access to be via Main Street only. The 

proposal would therefore be aligned with these policies. The Highway safety element of 

the access from Main Street will be discussed in a later section. 

4.7.1 Traffic Management Measures 

4.7.2 A Transport Statement has been submitted in support of the application which includes 

information on traffic impact from predicted vehicle movements. A road safety Audit has 

also been carried out in respect of the proposed development. Using the trips rates per 

unit contained within the submitted transport statement and based on 24 dwellings, the 

overall trips for AM peak would be 16 trips and 17 trips for PM Peak. LCC as Highway 

Authority have had regard to the submitted information and raise no objection to the 

scheme. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with the aims of Policy D1 of the 

Melton local Plan and H2 of the Neighbourhood Plan in respect of the impact in terms of 

traffic levels.  

4.8 Highway Safety 

4.8.1 Policy D1 states that development proposals should include appropriate, safe connection 

to the existing highway network and should make adequate provision for car parking. 

Policy IN2 requires that development does not unacceptably impact on the safety and 

movement of traffic on the highway network and provides appropriate and effective 

parking provision and servicing arrangements. 

4.8.2 Vehicular access to the site would be directly via Main Street in accordance with the 

criteria contained within Policy H2 of the Neighbourhood Plan. As layout remains a 

reserved matter, precise details of the off street parking provision is unknown. However, it 

is considered that the submitted illustrative plan shows how a scheme of upto 24 dwellings 

at the site could adequately accommodate a satisfactory level of off street parking amenity 

to serve this level of development at the site.  

4.8.3 The Local Highways Authority have reviewed the details submitted and raise no objection 

subject to conditions (conditions 6 and 7 in Appendix C) and also contributions in respect 

of sustainable travel provisions which are detailed later within this report. 

4.8.4 A Construction Traffic Management (CTM) Plan has been recommended to be submitted 

by condition 8 of Appendix C to ensure suitable and safe passage of vehicles along the 

highway and to ensure there is no mud or excess material on the highway. 

4.8.5 In light of the above and with the inclusion of the above described conditions to any grant 

of outline consent, the proposed development is considered to be in accordance with 

Policy IN2  of the Melton Local Plan and Policy T1 of the Neighbourhood Plan in respect of 

highway safety and parking. 

4.9 Design principles and other considerations 

4.9.1 The application submitted is for outline planning permission securing the demolition of an 

existing brick building and subsequent residential development of up to 24 dwellings, 

including vehicular access and an associated drainage scheme. 

4.9.2 Should outline planning permission be granted a further application “Reserved Matters” 

will be submitted which will consider the following details 

Page 39



Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

8 

 

• Appearance 

• Landscaping 

• Layout  

• Scale  

4.9.3 It is acknowledged that an indicative layout plan has been provided as part of this planning 

application, however the purpose of this plan is to illustrate how a development of this size 

could be achieved on this site. 

4.9.4 The indicative plan is not binding and the submission of the “Reserved Matters” would 

secure the design principles of the development, including satisfactory building materials, 

neighbouring amenity, layout and landscaping of the scheme in line with the requirements 

of the Neighbourhood Plan, The Melton Local Plan and the Design of Development 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). 

4.10 Flood and Drainage assessments 

4.10.1 The application is supported by a Flood Risk assessment which includes a surface water 

drainage strategy. The drainage strategy utilises a swale and detention basin on site prior 

to discharging 5l/s into unnamed ditch network along the site’s western boundary. The 

Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) have had regard to the submitted information and 

consider it to be satisfactory. Recommended conditions requiring further precise details of 

the drainage scheme are set out in conditions 9 and 10 of Appendix C.  

4.10.2 The proposed development would be located in flood zone 1 and at a low risk of flooding 

from fluvial sources. 

4.10.3 The surface water flood risk map shows the west of the site to have areas of high risk of 

surface water flooding. 

4.10.4 It is also noted that local residents described the existing flooding issues experienced 

within the village as well as the concerns that the proposed development would 

exacerbate this. The concerns from the Parish Council in this respect are also noted.  

4.10.5 The proposed scheme is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and as previously 

discussed the drainage strategy within the FRA states how a swale and attenuation basin 

would be utilised on site prior to discharging 5l/s into unnamed ditch network along the 

sites western boundary. 

4.10.6 The Environment Agency, Lead Local Flood Authority and Severn Trent have been 

consulted on the application and had regard to the submitted FRA. No objections have 

been received from the technical consultees on flood risk grounds. 

However, the recommended conditions from LLFA in relation to management and 

implementation of surface water are considered appropriate to attach to any grant of 

planning permission. Furthermore, with the attachment of the recommended conditions 

(conditions 9-12 within appendix C) requiring precise details to come forward that tally with 

a detailed scheme, a further consultation with the statutory consultees would be enabled, 

which in turn would facilitate a suitable drainage scheme to come forward and be secured 

as part of a reserved matters application. In light of the above it, is considered that the 

proposal would comply with the aims of Policies EN11 of the Melton Local Plan and ENV8 

of the Neighbourhood Plan.  

 

Page 40



Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

9 

 

4.11 Ecology 

4.11.1 Policy EN2 of MBC Local Plan and Neighbourhood Plan ENV5 seek to achieve net gains 

for nature and protect biodiversity as well as natural habitat for local wildlife. 

4.11.2 The submitted Vision Document puts forward ecological Enhancements as a guiding 

principle of the design. The indicative layout plan shows the creation of a large pond and 

additional woodland planting within the site.  

4.11.3 The application is supported by a Biodiversity Impact Assessment and Biodiversity Net 

Gain Metric which has shown a net gain of 14.37% natural habitat units and 12.49% 

hedgerow units at the site. 

4.11.4 Following the submission of these documents LCC Ecology have raised no objection to 

the proposed development. However conditions securing the calculated net gain and the 

submission of a detailed Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) at reserved 

matters stage is recommended.    

4.11.5 Given the above it is considered the proposal would not result in adverse impacts on 

ecology or biodiversity subject to the attachment of the above recommended conditions to 

any grant of outline consent. The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance 

with the aims of Policies EN2 of the Melton Local Plan and ENV5 of the Neighbourhood 

Plan. 

4.12 Archaeology 

4.12.1 The submitted Archaeology Statement sets out that a recent archaeological survey has 

taken place in and around the village and highlighted that there are potential 

archaeological remains to be found in the area particularly of Roman date. 

4.12.2 Following an initial consultation with LCC Archaeology, a further Archaeology Impact 

Assessment was submitted which included results of trail trenching at the site. 

4.12.3 It is noted that LCC Archaeology raise no objection to the scheme following the 

submission of this document and advises that the proposal would not result in any 

significant or direct impact upon archaeological interest or setting of any known or 

potential heritage asset. 

4.12.4 In light of the above, it is considered that the proposal would be acceptable from an 

archaeological and heritage perspective in accordance with Policy EN13 of the Melton 

Local Plan and Section 16 of the NPPF. 

5 Consultation & Feedback 

5.1 A site notice was posted at the site, a press notice was also posted in the Melton Times 

and neighbouring properties consulted.  

5.2 During the course of the application, an amended plan was received and description 

updated following which a full re-consultation was undertaken, including new site notice. 

5.3 Overall, following the initial and revised consultation, 30 letters of objection were received, 

details of the comments are summarised at Appendix B. 

6 Financial Implications 

6.1 The recommendation proposes a s106 agreement collecting developer contributions for   

various aspects (see above for details). 

Financial Implications reviewed by: N/A 

Page 41



Planning Report 

[Report Title] 

10 

 

7 Legal and Governance Implications 

7.1 Legal implications are set out in the report where relevant. Legal advisors will also be     

present at the meeting 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Tom Pickwell Solicitor 

8 Background Papers 

8.1 No relevant planning history. 

9 Appendices 

Appendix A: Summary of Statutory Consultation Responses 

Appendix B: Summary of Representation Received 

Appendix C: Recommended Planning Conditions 

Appendix D: List of Applicable Development Plan Policies 

 

Report Author: Gareth Elliott, Planning Officer 

Report Author Contact Details: 07771736127 

gelliott@melton.gov.uk 

Chief Officer Responsible: Paul Feehily, Interim Assistant Director for Planning 

Chief Officer Contact Details: 01664 502418 

pfeehily@melton.gov.uk 

 

Page 42



Appendix A : Consultation replies summary 

Parish Council:   
 
The meeting resolved to object.  

The application plan of 24 house is not consistent with the made W&E Neighbourhood Plan. The 
application does nothing to address the Parish Council's long held concerns about surface water 
flooding and sewerage in this location. There are concerns with regard to the design. An 
important element of the made Wymondham and Edmondthorpe Neighbourhood Plan: - New 
development should enhance and reinforce the local distinctiveness and character of the area in 
which it is situated......... and proposals should clearly show how the general character, scale, 
mass, density and layout of the site, of the building or extension fits in with the aspect of the 
surrounding area - New buildings should follow a consistent design approach in the use of 
materials, fenestration, and the roofline to the building. Materials should be chosen to 
complement the design of the development and add to the quality or character of the surrounding 
environment and of the Conservation Areas. (Policy H7: Building Design Principles) 

Ward Member  

 

this planning application is very controversial in the Village of Wymondham, not least because it 
is against the Neighbourhood Plan 

Housing Policy Officer:  

These housing policy comments are to be read in conjunction with the comments dated 
03/06/021. 
 
The application is now for 24 dwellings (15 x open market; 8 affordable housing for rent 
and 1 x affordable home ownership – all houses). 
 
Melton Local Plan Policy C2: Housing Mix 
 
The amended site location plan does not include an accommodation schedule and so there is 
nothing in regard to housing mix that I can comment on.   
 
The planning statement for the original application of 34 dwellings proposed an indicative housing 
mix: 7 x 2 beds; 17 x 3 beds; 10 x 4 beds. The 2 and 3 beds made up 70% of the overall number 
of dwellings, which aligns with the Optimum Housing Mix required in the LP policy C2 and policy 
H4 of the Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan, which encourages the provision 
of 2 and 3 bedroom properties.  I recommend for the housing mix for this application to 
predominantly provide 2 and 3 bedroom properties. 
 
The detail on the size of the properties is not offered.  I recommend for the properties to align 
with the National Space Standard.  The type of properties, e.g. houses or bungalows is not 
offered either at this stage.  It is recommended that a minimum 2 of the properties are bungalows, 
including within the market housing. 
 
A section 106 agreement would need to require for the housing mix to align with the Local Plan 
C2 policy, including table 8. 
 
Melton Local Plan Policy C4: Affordable Housing 

Page 43

Appendix A



 

The planning application statement proposes 9 affordable dwellings (37.5%), however, this is not 
in line with the requirement of policy C4 for value area 4, which instead is 40%.  This equates to 
9.6, which rounded up (in line with the Housing Mix and Affordable Housing SPD, 2019), is 10 
dwellings.   

The application is for 8 affordable housing for rent and 1 x affordable home ownership.  As the 
requirement is for 10 affordable dwellings, the requirement is 8 x affordable housing for rent and 
2 x affordable home ownership (in line with the Leicestershire and Leicester HEDNA (2017) 
evidence of need and the Housing Mix and Affordable Housing SPD approach to tenure).  I 
recommend for the 2 x affordable home ownership are First Homes (with the Government criteria 
for these homes attached). Further advice on these can be given and also further information 
can be found at: First Homes - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

The application does not offer any further detail on the affordable housing at this outline 
application stage.  It is recommended that the affordable housing is aligned with policy C2 on the 
housing mix of the affordable housing, policy C3 on the internal space standards and policy C4. 

The layout of the affordable housing is to be determined and the design of the affordable housing 
should be indistinguishable to the open market housing.   

A local connection cascade will need to be applied to the affordable housing and conditions on 
the let and sale of them, secured via the s.106 agreement. 

LCC Archaeology:  

Having reviewed the submitted trial trenching report I can confirm that no additional 
archaeological involvement will be required. I note the report includes a commitment to OASIS 
reporting with the Archaeological Data Service (ADS) and an accession number for the 
Leicestershire Museums Service (LMS).  

These provisions are in accordance with the planning requirements and the approved Written 
Scheme of Investigation. We therefore do not believe the proposal will result in a significant direct 
or indirect impact upon the archaeological interest or setting of any known or potential heritage 
assets. We would therefore advise that the application warrants no further archaeological action 
(NPPF Section 16, para. 194-195). 

LCC Lead Local Flood Authority:  

Leicestershire County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) advises the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) that the proposals are considered acceptable to the LLFA and we advise the 
following planning conditions be attached to any permission granted. Advised Conditions  

1. No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until such time as 
a surface water drainage scheme has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and disposal of surface 
water from the site.  

2. No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until such time as 
details in relation to the management of surface water on site during construction of the 
development has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 44

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/first-homes


Reason: To prevent an increase in flood risk, maintain the existing surface water runoff quality, 
and to prevent damage to the final surface water management systems though the entire 
development construction phase.  

3. No occupation of the development approved by this planning permission shall take place until 
such time as details in relation to the long-term maintenance of the surface water drainage 
system within the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  

Reason: To establish a suitable maintenance regime that may be monitored over time; that will 
ensure the long-term performance, both in terms of flood risk and water quality, of the surface 
water drainage system (including sustainable drainage systems) within the proposed 
development. 

Severn Trent  

With reference to the above planning application the Company's observations regarding 
sewerage are as follows. Foul is proposed to connect into the public combined water sewer, 
which will be subject to a formal section 106 sewer connection approval. Surface water is 
proposed to discharge into a watercourse, which we have no comment.  

Please note that It is advised to discuss surface water proposals with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority for their requirements or recommendations regarding acceptable disposal methods or 
flow rates. For the use or reuse of sewer connections either direct or indirect to the public 
sewerage system the applicant will be required to make a formal application to the Company 
under Section 106 of the Water Industry Act 1991. They may obtain copies of our current 
guidance notes and application form from either our website (www.stwater.co.uk) or by 
contacting our Developer Services Team (Tel: 0800 707 6600).  

Suggested Informative Severn Trent Water advise that although our statutory sewer records do 
not show any public sewers within the area you have specified, there may be sewers that have 
been recently adopted under, The Transfer Of Sewer Regulations 2011. Public sewers have 
statutory protection and may not be built close to, directly over or be diverted without consent 
and you are advised to contact Severn Trent Water to discuss your proposals. Severn Trent will 
seek to assist you obtaining a solution which protects both the public sewer and the building. 

Environment Agency  

We have reviewed the submitted documents and on this occasion the Environment Agency will 
not be making any formal comment on the submission for the following reason: - The 
development falls within flood zone 1 and therefore we have no fluvial flood risk concerns 
associated with the site.  

There are no other environmental constraints associated with the application site which fall within 
the remit of the Environment Agency. If, however, the proposal subsequently changes such that 
you feel that it may pose a significant environmental risk then please do not hesitate to contact 
us and we will be pleased to review our response 

LCC Highways:  

The Local Highway Authority Advice is that, in its view, the impacts of the development on 
highway safety would not be unacceptable, and when considered cumulatively with other 
developments, the impacts on the road network would not be severe. Based on the information 

Page 45



provided, the development therefore does not conflict with paragraph 111 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2021), subject to the conditions and/or planning obligations outlined 
in this report. 

LCC Developer Contributions  

Summary of Infrastructure Requirements 
Infrastructure Category Location Amount 
Libraries Melton Mowbray Library £1,029.38 
Waste Melton Mowbray RHWS £2,810.44 
Primary Education No contribution required £0.00 
Secondary/Post 16/SENS Village Roof Tariff for 
Secondary/Post 16/SENS 
£209,668.82 
Total £213,508.64 
 

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland ICS  

Following liaison with Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland ICS, I can confirm that NHS 

Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board will not be submitting a bid for this application. 

LCC Ecologist:  

No objection raised. 

Following receipt of the additional BNG calculation and Biodiversity Impact Assessment, the 
following comments were received; 

These changes have addressed my comments (and B+G have done a good job on the metric, 
which is pleasant to see!)  

There should be a planning condition referring to the BNG metric and to the Biodiversity Impact 
Assessment – e.g. ‘biodiversity net gains of [x] to be achieved on site as set out in metric [ref] 
and the BIA, unless otherwise agreed with LPA, to be implemented prior to occupation. Detailed 
LEMP to be approved at reserved matters covering 30 years maintenance of the onsite 
biodiversity gains, in accordance with the objectives in the BIA and to achieve the projected 
habitat conditions set out in the metric [ref]. Monitoring report on habitat condition to be provided 
at 2, 5, 10 and 20 years intervals after implementation. 

LCC Forestry  

Whilst areas of the site have been allocated within the local plan it appears that Phases 3 and 4 
sit outside of the allocated sites. At this time no environmental or Ecological Appraisal has been 
submitted in support of the application. Therefore It cannot be assessed as to whether the site 
would yield a Biodiversity NetGain or not. The site should have a design code to ensure that the 
proposed phases work to meet the same design requirements (including greenspace allocation) 
In terms of greenspace and canopy cover for the site, there is adequate space to contribute to 
an increase in the overall canopy cover of the parish.  

No Arboricultural Appraisal has been submitted at this point, An Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment should be undertaken to highlight existing constraints prior to the design of the site. 

Page 46



The majority of the trees are on the peripheries of the site and therefore the constraints will be 
minimal to the central development. The hedgerows bounding areas of the site should be 
retained and improved to provide high quality green corridors throughout the development and 
to maintain the site’s relationship with the rural landscape and historic land use.  

Given the location it would be suitable for the developer to work with the local community to 
provide some public green and Arboricultural assets (Community Orchard, Community Allotment 
Plots etc.…) Therefore subject to consideration of the above at Full Planning Application stage 
LCC Forestry do not object to the Outline proposal 

Designing Out Crime Officer: 

Leicestershire Police have no formal objections in principle to the application however we would 
like to make the following observations. 

General Recommendations  

All door and window sets will be to PAS24 (2016) which is now included in building regulations. 
There are other considerations such as BS 6375 Security Locking and Fire Security and BS EN 
50486 in relation to Audio and Video door entry systems. Consideration should be made to 
identify the most appropriate option for this site. Dwellings are recommended to have an Alarm 
System to BS7958, but there are other options on the Secured by Design portal which include 
BS6799 in relation to wire free alarm systems. Also BS EN 50131 and PD 6662 in relation to 
wired systems.  

1. Street lighting columns to BS 5489 are recommended.  

2. Appropriate fencing should be used to enclose the perimeter and is recommended to be 1.8m 
in height. This can be via planting or manufactured fencing.  

3. Key access points leading into the development should be considered for CCTV coverage 
supported by lighting to allow identification during day and night. This would allow vehicle and 
facial recognition in key areas. Appropriate signage should be in place to be compliant with the 
Data Protection Act. 

 4. Natural surveillance should be possible via ground level foliage being trimmed to 1m high and 
trees to have no foliage lower than 2m from the ground to allow a clear field of vision.  

5. Vehicular parking is recommended to be in curtilage as part of the dwellings where possible. 
Communal parking should be supported by natural observation, lighting and be set in clearly 
defined areas to deter unauthorised access.  

6. Consideration of Secured by Design principles is recommended and information in respect to 
the different standards is available on request.  

7. Opportunities to explore the potential for S106/CIL funding should be undertaken with relevant 
parties if appropriate.  

8. Dwellings are recommended to have an Alarm System to BS7958 with coverage of garages 
included where applicable.  

9. Commercial sites may benefit from smoke cloaking devices to deter access and reduce 
potential loss. 

Page 47



10. An electrical spur is recommended under a section 38 agreement at each vehicular entry 
point leading into the development.  

11. Consideration of Park Mark accreditation should be considered in the event of appropriate 
communal parking within the application.  

12. Consideration of safe routes through open space and parks is recommended for 
consideration in respect to vulnerable groups including girls and women. 

Network Rail 

No observations to make. 

 

Page 48



Appendix B : Summary of representations received 

Neighbours:  
32 letters of objections have been received from local residents on the following grounds: 
 

• Increased demand on local infrastructure/services 

• Increase in traffic 

• Flood risk and drainage concerns, with existing problems being experienced within the 
village.  

• Concerns regarding the use of Brick Yard Lane.  

• The proposal is contrary to the Neighbourhood Plan in that is uses the reserve site 
when the trigger has not been met. 

• I object to the proposal of a village hall, a village shop or children’s playground would 
be more useful. 

• No provision for services or shops to serve the development 

• Visibility concerns with vehicles regularly parked along Main Street. 

• Concerns over the spine road leading onto other potential development sites. 

• No play facilities for younger children. 

• There are no shops in Wymondham therefore all the homeowners will have to travel to 
buy food etc. 

• Objects to the development of the reserve site. 

• Increased air pollution from the cars generated by the development.  

• Fear over more bland design housing being developed. 

• Would want an independent study carried out on drainage and flooding. 
 

Page 49

Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C : Recommended conditions 

 
1. Application for the approval of reserved matters shall be made within three years from 

the date of this permission and the development shall be begun not later than two years 

from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved. 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town & Country Planning 

Act 1990 (as amended). 

2. Approval of the following details (hereinafter called "reserved matters") shall be 

obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before any development is 

commenced: 

1. Appearance 

2. Landscaping 

3. Layout 

4. Scale 

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance and impact of the development in 

accordance with Policies SS1 and D1 of the Melton Local Plan and Policies SD1, SD2, 

SD3, H7, ENV4 and ENV7 of the Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
3. The reserved matters as required by condition 2 above, shall provide for a mix of types 

and sizes of dwellings that will meet the area's local market housing need. 

Reason: To cater for a range of housing needs and to accord with Policy C2 of the 

Melton Local Plan and Policies SD1, SD2, SD3, H7, ENV4 and ENV7 of the 

Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
4. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete 

accordance with the submitted application details, as follows:  

Amended Illustrative Layout Reference AND0331 PHASE1A received by the Borough 

Council 11th August 2022. 

Amended Site Location Plan received by the Borough Council 11th August 2022. 

Biodiversity Net Gain Impact Assessment Ref. BG18.105.2 received 26th September 

2022. 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in accordance with Policies SS1 

and D1 of the Melton Local Plan and Policies SD1, SD2, SD3, H7, ENV4 and ENV7 of 

the Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan. 

 

Page 51

Appendix C



5. No development shall commence on site until such time as the existing and proposed 

ground levels of the site have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local 

planning authority. The approved proposed ground levels and finished floor levels shall 

then be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To ensure that the development has a satisfactory appearance in the interests 

of visual amenity to accord with Policies SS1, SS2 and D1 of the Melton Local Plan and 

Policies SD1, SD2, SD3, H7, ENV4 and ENV7 of the Wymondham and Edmonthorpe 

Neighbourhood Plan. 

 

6. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as the 

access arrangements shown on Drawing No. 23548_08_020_01 Rev D have been 

implemented in full. Visibility splays once provided shall thereafter be permanently 

maintained with nothing within those splays higher than 0.6 metres above the level of 

the adjacent footway/verge/highway.  

 

Reason: To ensure that vehicles entering and leaving the site may pass each other 

clear of the highway, in a slow and controlled manner, to afford adequate visibility at 

the access to cater for the expected volume of traffic joining the existing highway 

network in the interests of general highway safety and in accordance with the National 

Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 

7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as 1 

metre by 1 metre pedestrian visibility splays have been provided on the highway 

boundary on both sides of the access with nothing within those splays higher than 0.6 

metres above the level of the adjacent footway/verge/highway and, once provided, shall 

be so maintained in perpetuity. 

 

Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety and in accordance with the National 

Planning Policy Framework (2021) 

 

8. No development shall commence on the site until such time as a construction traffic 

management plan, including as a minimum details of the routing of construction traffic, 

wheel cleansing facilities, vehicle parking facilities, and a timetable for their provision, 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

construction of the development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details and timetable.  

 

Reason: To reduce the possibility of deleterious material (mud, stones etc.) being 

deposited in the highway and becoming a hazard for road users, to ensure that 

construction traffic does not use unsatisfactory roads and lead to on-street parking 

problems in the area 

 

 

 

Page 52



9. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until such time as site 

drainage details have been provided to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. Thereafter surface water shall not drain into the Public Highway and 

thereafter shall be so maintained.  

 

Reason: To reduce the possibility of surface water from the site being deposited in the 

highway causing dangers to road users in accordance with the National Planning Policy 

Framework (2021) 

 

10. No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until such time 

as a surface water drainage scheme has been submitted to, and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and disposal of 

surface water from the site.  

 

11. No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until such time 

as details in relation to the management of surface water on site during construction of 

the development has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent an increase in flood risk, maintain the existing surface water runoff 

quality, and to prevent damage to the final surface water management systems though 

the entire development construction phase. 

 

12. No occupation of the development approved by this planning permission shall take 

place until such time as details in relation to the long-term maintenance of the surface 

water drainage system within the development have been submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Reason: To establish a suitable maintenance regime that may be monitored over time; 

that will ensure the long-term performance, both in terms of flood risk and water quality, 

of the surface water drainage system (including sustainable drainage systems) within 

the proposed development. 

 

13. Biodiversity net gains of 14.37% habitat units and 12.49% hedgerow units to be 

achieved on site as set out in metric by John Harvey – Brindle and Green  Ltd and the 

Biodiversity Impact assessment Ref. BG18.105.2 received 26th September 2022 , 

unless otherwise agreed with Local Planning Authority, to be implemented prior to 

occupation. 

Reason: In order to secure satisfactory level of ecological enhancement in accord with 

the aims of Policy EN2 of the Melton Local Plan and Policy ENV5 of the Wymondham 

and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan. 

 

Page 53



14. A detailed LEMP shall be submitted at reserved matters covering 30 years maintenance 

of the on site biodiversity gains, in accordance with the objectives in the BIA and to 

achieve the projected habitat conditions set out in the metric by John Harvey – Brindle 

and Green Ltd. Monitoring report on habitat condition to be provided at 2, 5, 10 and 20 

years intervals after implementation. 

 

Reason: In order to secure satisfactory level of ecological enhancement in accord with 

the aims of Policy EN2 of the Melton Local Plan and Policy ENV5 of the Wymondham 

and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
 

Page 54



Appendix D : Applicable Development Plan Policies 

 
 
Melton Local Plan: 

• Policy SS1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

• Policy SS2 Development Strategy 

• Policy C1(A) Housing Allocations 

• Policy C2 Housing Mix 

• Policy C4 Affordable Housing Provision 

• Policy C9 Healthier Communities  

• Policy IN2 Transport, Accessibility and Parking. 

• Policy D1 Raising the Standard of Design.  

• Policy EN1 Landscape 

• Policy EN2 Biodiversity 

• Policy EN6 Settlement Character 

• Policy EN8 Climate Change 

• Policy EN9 Energy Efficient and Low Carbon Development 

• Policy EN11 Minimising the risk of Flooding 

• Policy EN12 Sustainable Drainage Systems 

• Policy EN13 Heritage Assets 
 
Wymondham and Edmonthorpe Neighbourhood Plan  
 

• Policy SD 1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

• Policy SD2 General Policy Principle 

• Policy SD3 Limits to Developments 

• Policy H1 Housing Provision 

• Policy H2 Housing Allocations 

• Policy H4 Housing Mix 

• Policy H6 Affordable Housing 

• Policy H7 Building Design Principles 

• Policy ENV4 Woodland, Trees and Hedges 

• Policy ENV5 Biodiversity 

• Policy ENV8 Rivers and Flooding 

• Policy E4 Broadband Infrastructure 

• Policy T1 Transport Requirements for New Developments 
 
Other 

• National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 

• Affordable Housing and Housing Mix SPD  

• Developer Contributions SPD 

• Design SPD 
 

 

Page 55

Appendix D



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4.1 Application 21/01223/FUL
	Appendix A - Saltby Airfield
	Appendix B - Saltby Airfield
	Appendix C - Saltby Airfield

	4.2 Application 21/00344/OUT
	Appendix A - Wymondham
	Appendix B - Wymondham
	Appendix C - Wymondham
	Appendix D - Wymondham


